
Alan Wilson
Attorney General

June 4, 2019

Ms. Meghan L. Walker, Executive Director
State Ethics Commission

201 Executive Center Drive, Suite 150

Columbia, SC 29210

Dear Ms. Walker:

You have requested an opinion "as to the constitutionality of enforcing certain provisions
of the South Carolina Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act of 1991
(the Act) with regard to political parties, as that term is defined in the Act." By way of
background, you provide the following information:

[a]s you may know, in South Carolina Citizens for Life. Inc. v. Krawcheck. 759 F.
Supp.2d 708 (D.S.C. 2010), the Act's definition of "committee". . . was declared
unconstitutionally overbroad due to its impact on groups engaged primarily in issue
advocacy. Citing North Carolina Right to Life. Inc. v. Leake. 525 F.3d 274 (4th Cir.
2008), the court held that the Act's filing and reporting requirements would only be
permissible when applied to organizations whose major purpose is the election or
opposition of a candidate for elective office.

Following these decisions, the Commission suspended enforcement of a
multitude of statutes related to "committees," including, but not limited to, S.C. Code
Ann. § 8-13-1308, which requires certain disclosure reports to be filed with the
Commission. Similarlv. out of an abundance of caution, the Commission suspended
enforcement of 6 8-13-1308 with regard to political parties' campaign accounts. As
indicated bv the attached 2015 memorandum, the Commission continued to enforce §
8-13-1308 with regard to political parties' operating accounts. . . . However, given
that "political party" is separately defined within the Act and is specifically
referenced in § 8-13-1308(0),. . . the Commission now seeks guidance as to whether
Krawcheck in fact limits the Commission's ability to enforce the Act's disclosure and
filing requirements of political parties' operating and campaign accounts.

Therefore, the Commission's question is as follows: Does Krawcheck limit the
Commission's ability to enforce the S.C. Code Ann. § 8-13-1308 with regard to a
political party, as that term is defined in the Act?

(emphasis added). You further note that "the Act distinguishes, and the Commission has
recognized, differences between contributions to a political party's campaign account and

" donations to a political party's operating account." (citing SEC AO 92-240). In the referenced
opinion of the State Ethics Commission, it was concluded that "transfers of funds from a national
party committee to a State partv are not subject to the restrictions contained in Section 8-13-
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